ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 4, 2012
3:22 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
Representative Bob M1l er

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representative M ke Chenaul t
COW TTEE CALENDAR

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO. 122(L&C)

"An Act relating to research on and exam nation of titles;
relating to residency requirenments for title insurance limted
producers; relating to real estate transfer fees; and providing
for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO. 104(JUD)

"An Act relating to manufactured hones, including manufactured
homes permanently affixed to land, to the conversion of
manufactured honmes to real property, to the severance of
manuf actured hones from real property, to the titling,
conveyance, and encunbrance of manufactured hones, and to
manuf act urers’ certificates of origin for vehicles; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSSB 104(JUD) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 326
"An Act requiring health care insurers to offer a child-only
policy; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2012



BILL: SB 122
SHORT TITLE: REAL ESTATE TRANSFER FEES/ TI TLE | NSURANCE
SPONSOR(s): LABOR & COMVERCE

04/ 08/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 08/ 11 (S) CRA, L&C

01/ 24/ 12 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

01/ 24/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 24/ 12 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

01/ 31/ 12 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

01/ 31/ 12 (S) Moved CSSB 122(CRA) Qut of Committee

01/ 31/ 12 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 01/ 12 (S) CRA RPT CS 4DP NEW TI TLE

02/ 01/ 12 (S) DP: OLSON, KOOKESH, MENARD, WAGONER

02/ 02/ 12 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

02/ 02/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 02/ 12 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 21/ 12 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

02/ 21/ 12 (S) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

02/ 23/ 12 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

02/ 23/ 12 (S) Moved CSSB 122(L&C) Qut of Committee

02/ 23/ 12 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 24/ 12 (S) L&C RPT CS 5DP NEW TI TLE

02/ 24/ 12 (S) DP: EGAN, G ESSEL, DAVIS, PASKVAN,
MENARD

03/ 14/ 12 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 14/ 12 (S) VERS| ON:  CSSB 122( L&C)

03/ 15/ 12 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 15/ 12 (H) L&C, JUD

04/ 04/ 12 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: SB 104

SHORT TI TLE: MANUFACTURED HOMVES AS REAL PROPERTY

SPONSOR(s): FRENCH

03/ 16/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 16/ 11 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 29/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 29/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 29/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/31/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/31/ 11 (S) Moved SB 104 Qut of Conmittee

03/31/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 01/ 11 (S) STA RPT 2DP 3NR

04/ 01/ 11 (S) DP: KOOKESH, MEYER

04/ 01/ 11 (S) NR. W ELECHOWSBKI , PASKVAN, G ESSEL

04/ 06/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE

- 2- April 4, 2012



04/ 06/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 06/ 11 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 15/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 15/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 15/ 11 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 18/ 12 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

01/ 18/ 12 (S) Moved CSSB 104(JUD) Qut of Committee

01/ 18/ 12 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 20/ 12 (S) JUD RPT CS 4DP SAME TITLE

01/ 20/ 12 (S) DP:  FRENCH,  COGHILL, W ELECHOWBKI,
PASKVAN

01/ 27/ 12 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

01/ 27/ 12 (S) VERS| ON:  CSSB 104( JUD)

01/ 30/ 12 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 30/ 12 (H) L&C, STA

04/ 04/ 12 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 326
SHORT TITLE: CHI LD ONLY HEALTH CARE COVERAGE
SPONSOR(s): GUTTENBERG

02/ 17/ 12 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 17/ 12 (H) L&C, FIN
04/ 04/ 12 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

DANA OVEN, Staff

Senate Labor & Comerce Committee

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 122 on behalf of the Senate
Labor & Commerce Conmittee, of which Senator Dennis Egan is the
chair.

SENATOR HOLLI' S FRENCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 104 as sponsor of the bill.

GEORGE G NSBERG, Attorney

Mcd inchey Stafford PLLC, Legal Counsel to Wlls Fargo

Des Moi nes, |owa

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of SB 104.

SHELLY MELLOTT, Deputy Director
Director's Ofice

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 4, 2012



Di vision of Mtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of SB 104.

REPRESENTATI VE DAVI D GUTTENBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 326 as prine sponsor.

LI NDA HALL, Director

Di vision of |Insurance, Anchorage O fice

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
HB 326.

MARI E DARLI N, Coor di nat or

AARP Capital City Task Force

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 326.

ADAM WOOL
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 326.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:22: 53 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:22 p.m Represent ati ves
Thonpson, Holnmes, MIller, Saddler and O son were present at the
call to order. Representative Johnson arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

SB 122- REAL ESTATE TRANSFER FEES/ TI TLE | NSURANCE

3:23:11 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 122(L&C), "An Act relating to research on
and exam nation of titles; relating to residency requirenents
for title insurance limted producers; relating to real estate
transfer fees; and providing for an effective date."

3:23:17 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2012



DANA OWNEN, Staff, Senate Labor & Commerce Committee, Al aska
State Legislature, of which Senator Dennis Egan is the chair,
referred to CSSB 122(L&C), Version |, which passed the Senate.
He explained the bill's purpose is first, to ensure that the
real property titles researched and issued in Alaska have an
Al aska perspecti ve. He explained that many businesses want to
perform work outside the U S. and regularly solicit business in
Al aska. The title insurance industry has expressed concern that
all owi ng conpanies outside the state to perform title searches
could result in inperfect real property titles in Alaska. This

bill would ensure that at |east some conpany |ocated in Al aska
has reviewed the title. Second, SB 122 would elimnate a
practice - also elimnated in approximately 40 other states -

related to transfer fee covenants. He offered that transfer fee
covenants allow the original seller of real property to gain a
fee in perpetuity each tinme the real estate transfers ownership.
He noted this practice was first outlawed in 1857 in New York

when the New York <courts ruled it to be a "vestige of
feudalism"™ It has not becone a significant issue in the state,
but this bill would elimnate that possibility.

3:26:13 PM

MR. OVEN reviewed the changes nmade to SB 122 in the Senate. He
referred to page 1, lines 7-9, of SB 122, which requires title
i nsurance be issued by a title insurance limted producer. He
offered that the Division of Insurance's director, Linda Hall,
could provide nore detail; however, this provision would require
that in order to acquire a title insurance for a limted
producer's |license the business nmust be located in the state and
be open to the public. He acknow edged that this provision wll

not guarantee that an Alaskan wll run the title insurance
business, but it is probably as close as the state can get to
ensure an Alaskan will be involved. He referred to Section 2,

which states that the title insurance limted producer cannot
obtain a license unless the producer is a resident of the state.
He acknowl edged that this provision is controversial. He
referred to nenbers' packets to a nenorandum from the bil
drafter who expressed doubt as to whether this provision would
pass constitutional nuster. Still, the sponsor chose to |eave
the provision in the bill. He referred to Section 3 to the
title transfer fee covenants, which remains unchanged; however,
he understood a proposed commttee substitute (CS) - which the
commttee may take up today - does change this provision.

3:28:17 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE M LLER referred to page 2, |ine 8. He said he
assunmed the wuse of "state" refers to the State of Al aska,
al t hough the | anguage does not specify which state.

MR. OWAEN answered that this is an issue that did not arise
previ ously. He also assunmed that since the provision falls
within Alaska's statutes that it refers to the State of Al aska.
He had no objection if the commttee wished to clarify that
poi nt .

3:29:28 PM

REPRESENTATIVE MLLER nmde a notion to adopt Conceptual
Amendrent 1, on page 2, line 8, at the end of the sentence to
read, " ... a resident of the State of Al aska."

REPRESENTATI VE THOVPSON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES pointed out that she has no objection
si nce Conceptual Anendnent 1 is a conceptual amendnent; however,
she offered her belief that the term "state" is frequently used
and the termis not generally specified as the State of Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER agreed if the use of "state" wthout
specifying "Alaska' 1is the current convention and it is
understood as neaning "State @ of Al aska, " t hat further
clarification would not be necessary in the bill.

CHAI R OLSON wondered if "state" would be capitalized in State of
Al aska.

MR. OWMEN understood that the bill drafters tend to mnimze
using capital letters.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES clarified the intention of Conceptual
Amendrment 1 is to nmake sure that the provision nmeans the State
of Alaska and if Conceptual Anmendnment 1 is not necessary, that
the drafter should follow the normal drafting procedures in this
provi sion of SB 122.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVPSON wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

There being no further objection, Conceptual Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

3:31:31 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how many people will be "aced out”
of the title insurance business by limting it to conpanies that
neet the definition.

MR. ONEN answered that he was uncertain. He commented he has
heard assertions that sone people may not be able to go into
busi ness; however, the sponsor crafted the |anguage to mnimze
any inpedinents to market entry. He elaborated that sone
proposals in the original bill would have substantially extended
the time and requirenents to maintain title plant records, but
these provisions are no longer in the bill. He concl uded that
t he sponsor hopes that the bill has elimnated sone inpedinents,
but in direct answer to how many busi nesses woul d be affected he
said he could not estimate.

3:33: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how many title insurance conpanies
currently operate in the state.

MR. OMNEN answered eight or nine title insurance conpanies
operate in Al aska. He suggested Director Hall nay be able to
answer nore accurately the nunber.

CHAIR OLSON noted Director Hall is indicating by shaking her
head that she does not know for certain either.

3:33:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether conpetition would be
limted and also whether the cost to obtain title insurance

information will rise if the conpetition is being elimnated
since a |imted nunber of conpanies currently 1issue title
i nsur ance.

MR. OWEN responded that he did not believe that would be the

out cone. He suggested it nmay have been the result in the
original bill, but changes to SB 122 have carefully been crafted
so that will not be the case.

CHAIR OLSON renmarked that his office has been contacted by only
two title insurance conpani es.

MR. OVEN remarked that the sponsor has heard from several nore

conpani es than that. In further response to Chair O son, he
t hought the title conpanies were happy with the bill.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2012



3:34: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nmade a notion to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for SB 122, labeled 27-LS0789\D,
Bai l ey, 3/19/12, as a working docunent.

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

3:35:29 PM

MR. OWNEN explained the changes in Version D. He referred to
page 2, lines 15-16 of Version D, which read, "(1) payable on a
one-time basis only on the next transfer of the interest in real
property;" and explained the intent of this provision is to
elimnate transfer fee covenants. He acknow edged that he has
revi ewed paragraph (1) several tinmes and mstakenly interpreted
it to nean that the first tinme the property was sold the fee
could be charged. He now interpreted this provision to nean
when real property is sold and the transfer fee is collected
that each tinme the property is sold another transfer fee can be
col | ect ed. However, he related that is not the sponsor's
intent. He offered the sponsor's support for the changes in the
proposed CS, Version D

3:36: 26 PM

CHAI R OLSON renoved his objection, and therefore Version D was
before the conmttee. He then announced that public testinony
on SB 122 will be kept open.

3:36:45 PM

[ SB 122 was hel d over.]

SB 104- MANUFACTURED HOMES AS REAL PROPERTY

3:36: 57 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the next order of business would be
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO  104(JUD), "An Act relating to
manuf actured hones, including nmanufactured hones pernmanently

affixed to land, to the conversion of manufactured honmes to real
property, to the severance of manufactured honmes from real
property, to the titling, conveyance, and encunbrance of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2012



manuf act ured honmes, and to manufacturers' certificates of origin
for vehicles; and providing for an effective date.”

3:37:16 PM

SENATOR HOLLI'S FRENCH, Al aska State Legislature, summarized that
SB 104 is designed to allow individual Al askans who own their
manufactured or nobile honme and the |and upon which the nobile
home sits the ability to title their nobile home as real
property. He explained that it takes many, nany pages to get
t here. He pointed out that Alaska statutes relating to nobile
hones consist of a series of statutes that treat nobile hones as
vehicles and these statutes need to be noved to the real estate
provisions in statute and to do so results in the lengthy bill
currently before the conmttee.

3:38: 53 PM

SENATOR FRENCH expl ai ned that SB 104 establishes a formal nethod
to elimnate the certificate of title for a manufactured hone -
a nobile honme - and converts the hone to real property when the
home is or will be permanently affixed to real property. He
further explained that the bill helps nmanufactured honeowners -
who own a manufactured home on a permanent foundation and al so
own the land beneath it - gain access to title the nobile hone
as real property. He clarified that this conversion is purely
voluntary since nothing in SB 104 conpels nobile honeowners to
do so; however, this bill would allow nobile homeowners to gain
access to better interest rates on borrowi ng and selling. He
reiterated that there is not any conpulsion to convert a nobile
home to real property since it is all voluntary. He stated that
Al aska, unlike the vast mpjority of other states, has no forma
statutory procedure for converting a nmanufactured hone to real
property. The bill would also bring state definitions of
manuf actured homes in accordance with the U S. Departnment of
Housing and Urban Developnment (HUD) definitions for property
conver si on. He stated that the bill is intended to neet
eligibility requirements for a bank or other lender to sell a
nortgage or nmanufactured honme to Federal National Mortgage

Association (Fannie Mae) or Feder al Hone Loan Mortgage
Corporation (Freddie Mac). The bill would create a neans for
titling manufactured honmes which were fixed real property if the
title has been m splaced or |ost. He stated that the bill has

consi derabl e support, including support of the Alaska Land Title
Association, First American Title, Wlls Fargo, and the Al aska
Bankers Associ ation (ABA). He listed the ABA's nmenbers as the
Al aska Pacific Bank, Denali State Bank, KeyBank, First Bank of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- April 4, 2012



Ket chi kan, First National Bank of Alaska, M. MKinley Bank,
Northrim Bank, and Wells Fargo. The letter from the ABA is
signed by Joe Beedle. He recapped that this |list indicates deep
support for SB 104 within the business comunity in the state

He concluded by acknow edging this subject area is not an area
in which he is an expert. He indicated the Senate spent
considerable tinme reviewwng SB 104 and there is not any known
opposition to the bill.

3:42: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for any revenue inplications for an
owner of a manufactured honme and the associated | and. He
clarified he is interested in any fees, tax consequences, and
nortgage inplications for converting manufactured hones to real
property under the bill.

SENATOR FRENCH deferred the fee portion to the state's
W t nesses. He answered, wth respect to the financia
inplications for the individual, by relating a scenario in which
a party holds a loan on the nobile honme with "used car rates”,
titled by Dvision of Mtor Vehicles, (DW), wth an interest

rate of approximately 10-12 percent. He estimated using this
scenario the party could reduce his/her rates dramatically since
real estate loan interest rates are nuch | ower. He pointed out

it would depend on the size of the l|oan, but some nanufactured
homes are very nice, ranging from $50,000 to $100, 000, plus the
| and val ue. He recapped that it is hard to quantify, but the
savings is potentially substantial.

3:43: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER remarked that he has friends engaged in
the real estate business and his famly has been involved in
t hat busi ness, too. He offered his belief that there is always
a way to recover costs from any transaction. He expressed
interest in having any associated costs identified for the
record.

SENATOR FRENCH deferred to the experts.
3:44: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether there would be any
inplications for property taxes on conversions.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -10- April 4, 2012



SENATOR FRENCH pointed out that question has not been raised
before, but he, too, is interested in the answer.

3:44: 41 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked whether the property would qualify for the
Al aska Housi ng Energy Program

SENATOR FRENCH answered yes. He comented he noved to Anchorage
in 1978 and bought a trailer on Piper Street, a 12 by 65-foot
Astro Home that he winterized hinself. He has since sold it,
but he says he was quite attached to it as nany homeowners are
about their first hones.

3:45:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked M. G nsberg what would be changed
in financing terns to convert the nobile home to real property.

3:46: 26 PM

GECRCE G NSBERG  Attorney, Mdinchey Stafford, PLLC, Legal
Counsel to Wells Fargo asked for clarification on the question.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether there would be any
underlying requirenents if a person were to convert his/her
property from a vehicle to real property. He recogni zed the
party woul d not have a hone nort gage.

3:47:12 PM

MR. G NSBERG answered that part of the problemis the situation
can occur, in which an Alaskan owns a nobile hone wthout the
certificate and title, but the nobile home is already
per mnent |y af fi xed to | and. He characteri zed t he

aforenmentioned situation as the worst case scenario since
legally the nobile home may be neither personal or real property
since currently the Alaska DW wll not issue a certificate of
title to a manufactured hone that is permanently affixed. He
enphasi zed the party does not have any way to finance or sell
the home, yet, legally it is not clear that the property is real
property. This bill would create a procedure to nake the
manuf act ured hone either personal property or real property. It
is advantageous for the nost part for a honeowner to have the
mobil e home and associated land treated as real property to
allow for financing. He agreed with Senator French's coments
that financing a nobile home as real property would likely allow

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- April 4, 2012



the owner to obtain lower interest rates, especially given that
there is not a clear |oan market on manufactured hones.

3:49:13 PM

MR. G NSBERG related that certainly the loan could not be sold
to Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac unless clear procedures exist in
state law to identify the nobile home and associated |and as
real estate. He turned to costs. He suggested that first, the
owner would be subject to filing fees to file an application
with the departnent to cancel the title or certificate of
origin, or to apply for a confirmation of conversion if neither
record exists. Second, the owner would need to file recording
fees with the recorder's office. He stated that nothing in
statutes pertains to taxes, but once the procedure set forth in
statute has been conpleted, the manufactured honme is considered
real estate for all purposes. He said he assunmes the property
woul d be considered real estate for tax purposes and be re-
assessed. He enphasized, as Senator French indicated earlier,
this procedure is entirely optional. He highlighted that for
those who do want to take advantage of converting their nobile
home and associated land to real property that this bil
provides a nmeans and a public record for the |ender or buyer to
research the real estate records.

3:51:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked which departnent the provision
refers to in the bill.

MR. G NSBERG answered the [Di vision] of Mdtor Vehicles would be
the entity. He enphasized unless the nmanufactured hone is
converted that it is <considered a vehicle covered by a
certificate of title. He pointed out the vehicle doesn't nove
since it is already affixed to | and.

3:52: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the nmunicipality would
automatically be notified of the conversion.

MR. G NSBERG answered that the statute does not address this

He indicated that the recorded affidavit of affixation that
identifies the hone is permanently affixed to real property. He
was unsure of the comrunication between the recorder's office
and tax office.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- April 4, 2012



3:53: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER related his understanding that the
assessor's office would likely contact the owner.

3:53:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked for a definition of permanently
affixed and if that nean wheels off or on bl ocks.

MR. G NSBERG answer ed no. He said the statute addresses this.
He referred to page 20, Ilines 3-21, read: is permanently
affixed when it is (1), (2), or (3).

3:55:13 PM
SENATOR FRENCH referred to page 20, lines 3-11. He read:

Sec. 34.85.150. Permanently affixed. A manuf act ured
home is permanently affixed when it is

(1) anchored to real property by attachnent to a
per manent foundati on;

(2) constructed in accordance with applicable state
and | ocal bui | di ng codes and manuf acturer's
specifications as provided in ... the federa
Depart ment of Housing and Urban Devel opnent (24 C. F.R
3285): and (3) connected to a residential wutility,
including water, gas, electricity, sewer, or septic
servi ce.

3:55: 27 PM

SHELLY MELLOTT, Deputy Director, Director's Ofice, Division of
Mot or Vehicles (DW), introduced herself.

3:56: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER how nany notor homes are titled under
DW's | aws.

M5. MELLOTT answered 8,200 nobile honmes are registered. In
further response to a question, she restated 8, 200.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for any estimation on the nunber of
antici pated conversions to real property.

M5. MELLOTT answered she could not say.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -13- April 4, 2012



3:57: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOWPSON asked whether 8,200 referred to the
nunber of titles.

M5. MELLOIT answered yes, current the DW has 8,287 nobile hones
titled inits system

3:57:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how nany nobile honmes are
permanent |y affi xed.

MS. MELLOTT answered that she did not know.
3:58: 03 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on SB 104.

3:58:16 PM
REPRESENTATI VE THOWPSON renmar ked that the bill is 21 pages | ong.
3:58: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES renarked that she has not had nmany
comments, but the ones she has received are positive as sone
nobi | e honeowners would like to sell but cannot currently do so.

3:59: 00 PM

CHAIR OLSON comented that he has not received any negative
comments on the bill.

3:59: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to report CSSB 104(JUD) out of
committee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no further objection, the CSSB
104(JUD) was reported fromthe House Labor and Comrerce Standi ng
Commi ttee.

HB 326- CH LD- ONLY HEALTH CARE COVERAGE

4:00:13 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- April 4, 2012



CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 326, "An Act requiring health care insurers to
offer a child-only policy; and providing for an effective date."

4:00:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAVID GUTTENBERG Al aska State Legislature
stated that a constituent contacted his office to inform him
there is not any child-only health care offered in the state
He explained that if a person has a healthy child who is not
eligible for Denali Kid Care, and does not have a condition that

would put the child into a high-risk pool, that no insurer
offers health care for the child. He related grandparents who
beconme the custodial parents have no place to go for coverage.
This bill, HB 326, would ask the insurance industry to offer
plans to cover at-risk children due to an insurability gap.
This would ensure that every conpetent is eligible. He
expressed dismay that there is not any child-only health care in
the state. He pointed out that the bill has a term nation date

that repeals AS 21.42.420 on January 1, 2014 since if health
care continues forward that the health care would be offered

regardl ess; however, right now there is not any health care
avai |l abl e.

4:02:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he thought it was a good concept and
he likes it. He asked in light of the pending U S. Suprene
Court case if he wanted to repeal this provision on January 1,
2014.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG | eft it up to the conmttee to decide.
4:03: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON suggested that if it is a good idea that
there wasn't any reason not to extend it.

4:03: 38 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how big the universe of children
whose famlies too rich to qualify for Denali Kid Care, but do

not have enough neans to afford private insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG answered that the AARP indicates that
11, 000 grandparents have custody of their grandchildren.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 15- April 4, 2012



4:04:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER inquired as to whether <children are
defined as being under 18 years of age.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG answer ed yes; under 18 years of age.
4:04: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER referred to sonme good analysis of costs.
He inquired as to whether an estimate of cost for the policies
for children-only is avail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG answered no, that the actuarial wll
come up with those figures. He clarified that the bill does not
ask for discounts or waivers. The insurance conpanies woul d
market it as a nornal product.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the ©policies would be
pur chased by an adult for a child.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG agr eed.

4:05: 22 PM

LI NDA HALL, Director, Division of Insurance, Anchorage Ofice

Department of  Commerce, Community & Econom c Devel opnent
(DCCED), stated that she is available for questions.

4. 06: 01 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked if the children in question would have access
to the Al aska Conprehensive Health Association (ACH A) high-risk
i nsurance.

M5. HALL answered that healthy children would not be eligible
since ACH A is established for people with conditions that nake
t hem uni nsur abl e.

4:06:32 PM

CHAIR OLSON inquired as to whether this could be done on an
adm ni strative basis.

M5. HALL answered no; the division has explored that option.
The division does not have any statutory authority to allow the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -16- April 4, 2012



division to promulgate regulations although sone states can do
so.

CHAIR OLSON related his understanding that the division cannot
roll out new products.

MS. HALL answer ed no.
4:06:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether this is a unique problemto
Al aska or if other states have addressed this issue.

M5. HALL recalled that 17 states had the sane condition as
Al aska. She noted that sonme states were able to
adm nistratively require an open enrollnent period. The terns
vary, some range for 30 days. She recalled two states have two
separate 30-day periods and other states offer |onger periods of
tine.

4:07:47 PM

M5. HALL stated that the open enrollnment period is longer in
this bill than nost she has seen. She related that under the
federal health care reform sone provisions went into effect in
Sept enber 2010. One provision pertained to the underwiting of
chil dren under ages of 19, she said.

4:08:39 PM

M5. HALL related that the prohibition of any underwiting that
woul d have anobunted to a guarantee issue of January 1, 2014
Many insurers did not want to take the risk of having adverse
sel ection, such that an individual only purchase insurance when
the person really needs it. She expl ained that nost insurance
is based on the theory of large nunbers plus |arge nunbers of
people contributing, but not all of them actually using the
funds. She pointed out that is one of the problens the division
has encountered with the high-risk pool - which is subsidized at
$5 mllion per year. Thus taking risks w thout being able to
underwite creates a bigger risk of using the resources than
sonme insurers were wlling to take so two insurers have pulled
out of Al aska. She said that throughout the country this is not
unusual

4:10:14 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- April 4, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if Alaska mandates this by passing
the bill, whether the state is likely to see other insurance
conpani es pull out.

M5. HALL said she can't answer that question. She has not heard
anyone threaten to do so, but she is unsure she would hear. She
expl ai ned that she has had sone indication that if the playing
field was a level playing field and everyone has to provide the
insurance it may not be so onerous. She explained that if one
conpany offers coverage and they get all the unhealthy kids to
cover is nore onerous than if all the conpanies have to insure
the children and the unhealthy children are spread anong them

4:11: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the shadow of health care
mandates darken the prospects for any <change in health
i nsur ance. He inquired as to whether there is any chilling
effect during the wait for the US. Supreme Court to issue the
ACAPPA deci si on.

M5. HALL said she did not know. She related that the health
i nsurance industry is under some stress of the unknown. She
related that the division receives new regul ations al nost weekly
and or receives interpretations of certain pieces of the federal
heal th care | aw

4:12:39 PM

M5. HALL stated the division may be inpacted three nonths from
now wth nore changes and unknown obligations that are as
chilling as anything. She pointed out that the enactnent of
pi eces of the federal health care | aw conti nues.

4:13:24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if the division has sufficient data
to estimate costs of child-only insurance.

M5. HALL answered no; the division has a rate approval effective
date of January 1, but the rates will need to be filed with the
Division of Insurance and justified actuarially. So while she
cannot predict the costs she can say that health care in Al aska
is extrenely expensive. She said health insurance rates are
considerably higher in the state than nost places so she would
not expect child-only health care coverage to be inexpensive.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- April 4, 2012



4:14: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER stated he reviewed sone of the provisions
of the bill. He referred to page 2, lines 8-17 to the
definition of late enrollee. He pointed out if a child had
never been covered by insurance that the |anguage seens to
exclude themfromthe bill

M5. HALL agreed. She suggested that the late enrollee allows
people to enroll outside the open enrollnent period which is
defined in paragraph 2. She agreed the provisions he nentions
does not appear to allow a child who has never been covered

She related that if the circunstance arises in which a child who
has never been covered needs insurance the adult custodian m ght
risk sone adverse selection. She recalled the invincible "20
sonet hings" who are sure they don't need insurance because
nothing wll happen. She said when a parent has a healthy child
who doesn't need insurance who is later diagnosed with sonething
and the parent then buys insurance represents the worst-case
scenario in the insurance world. She pointed out that
illustrates the purpose of the open enrollnment period since that
is the point at which insurance is offered for healthy children.
She explained that adding the option to one of exceptions in the
provi sions on page 2, lines 8-17 would nake it an open-ended
ability to enroll.

4:17:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER related his understanding that if a child
has never been covered the child would not be covered in this
bill.

M5. HALL pointed out the child would be during eligible under
paragraph (2) during the enrollnent period from January 1 -
March 31 of each year. She explained that helps put sone
paranmeters on when people can go out and buy insurance.

4:18:56 PM

M5. HALL explained that ACHIA is insurance that people wth
serious health conditions can purchase and the premuns are
fairly high. The ACHI A has a public neeting each year. She
heard public testinmony in which a person testified that they
purchased ACHI A in Decenber of the prior year, had a full hip
repl acement for about $100,000, then dropped coverage in
February. She offered this as an exanple of adverse selection

The person paid for two nonths of premuns for a few thousand

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- April 4, 2012



dol lars, but incurred surgery costs of $100,000 and then dropped
t he insurance. She indicated that the open enrollnment period
tries to balance this out. She reiterated that people have the
option to obtain coverage while they are healthy during the open
enrol | ment peri od.

4:20:55 PM

MARI E DARLIN, Coordinator, AARP Capital City Task Force, stated
that there is no sense repeating the testinony. She stated that
this bill is needed and inportant. She referred to the AARP' s
letter of support, and noted that ~currently no insurance
conpanies in Al aska offer children-only insurance. She pointed
out that many grandparents are raising their grandchildren. She
related statistics that at estimated 5,000 grandparents are
raising 8,000 grandchildren in Al aska. She pointed out that
Medi care covers the grandparent, but coverage does not extend to
famly nmenbers. She stated that grandparents take on this
responsibility but health care is an issue. The coverage is not
I nexpensi ve. She stated that the 2010 Census and the Al aska
Department of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent estinmates 11,778
grandchil dren under the age of 18 are in a household led by a

gr andpar ent . She indicated that these grandparents desire to
furnish health care if they can afford to do so. She stated
that the AARP speaks in support of the bill since it is one nore

way for grandparents to take care of their grandchildren.
4:24:23 PM

ADAM WOOL stated he is a parent of two children. He and his
wi fe buy their insurance through ACH A He explained that they
each have pre-existing conditions although neither is seriously
ill, but cannot be covered by other insurance. He reported that
their first child was born about five years ago and has her own
policy through Blue Cross/Blue Shield. Their second child was
born two years ago and the law or insurance policy has since
changed and they cannot buy insurance. He pointed out that
their second child is basically in a "black hole" of not being
eligible for any insurance coverage. He said right now there is
not a way to buy insurance for both children.

CHAI R OLSON hoped that sone renedy woul d be forthcom ng.
4:26: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if he could buy insurance through
ACHI A.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- April 4, 2012



MR WOOL answered no; that the child would need to have had a
pre-existing nedical condition.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for the insurance cost to his
famly.

MR. WOOL answered that the famly has three individual insurance
pl ans. Their ol dest daughter has a Blue Cross/Blue Shield plan
with a $5,000 deducti bl e. He and his wife each have individua

plans with ACHI A, each with a $5,000 deductible. He sumarized
that the three of them have $15,000 deductible for their
i nsurance policies, but they cannot buy insurance for the
youngest, healthy child. He said he spoke to the ACHA
representative several tines. He learned that in sone other
states a famly plan is allowed so healthy children of parents
on ACH A can be incorporated into the plan; however that is not
the case in Al aska.

4:27:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for the amount of the prem uns.

MR  WOOL answered that conmbined premuns for ACH A cost
approxi mately $1400 and the ol dest daughter's insurance prem uns
cost about $200 per nonth. He pointed out the oldest child is a
healthy child who was covered before the rule changed and her
prem uns cost approximtely $200 per nonth.

4:28:39 PM

[ HB 326 was hel d over. ]

4:29:32 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:30 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- April 4, 2012



